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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT i s i

To the Members of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of HT Mobile Solutions Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act., read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder. We conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

5,F. Batlivoi & Co, LLF, a Limited Liability Partriership with LLP identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office - 22, Camac Street, Block 'C°, 2rd Fleor, Kolkata-700 016



S.R. BatiiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind
AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2017, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account ;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,;

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017,
from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us: .

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

iv. As per books of account of the Company and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Company did not have cash balance as on November 8, 2016 and December 30,
2016 and has no cash dealings during this period
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Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) audited by the predecessor auditor whose
report for the year ended March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 dated 09" May, 2016 and 12" May, 2015
respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, as adjusted for the
differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which
have been audited by us.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: May 16, 2017
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date

Re: HT Mobile Solutions Limited (‘the Company?)

(i)(a)

(iXb)

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

v)

(i)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there
is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in fixed assets of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of
any goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(vii)(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, service tax, cess, duty of customs and
other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance,
sales-tax, duty of excise, value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(vii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in

respect of provident fund, income-tax, service tax, cess, duty of customs and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, duty of
excise, value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(vii)(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of provident fund,

income tax, service tax, cess and duty of customs which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute. The provisions relating to employees” state insurance, sales-tax, duty of excise,
value added tax are not applicable to the Company.
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(vii)

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial
institution or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the year.

(ix)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-[A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

- “// -

per Yishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: May 16, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HT MOBILE SOLUTIONS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HT Mobile Solutions Limited
(“the Company™) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures tje
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of [ndia.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Nuybe: 301003E/E300005

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

Place of Signature: Gurgaon
Date: May 16, 2017




HT Mobile SolutionsLimited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2017

As per our report of even date

For S.K. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301003E/ E300003

-
per ?ishai Sharma

Partner
Membership No, 96766

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 16, 2017

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of the financial stalements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HT Mobile SolutiorsLimited

ramjit Singh

Company Secretary

@(\f L}

Benoy Royehowdhury

Director
(DIN: 00816822)

As at As at As at1
Particulars Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 April 1, 2015
L (Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
1 ASSETS
1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3,307 5,866 1,505
(b) Intangible assets 4 10,613 15,301 11,157
(¢ ) Financial assets
(1)Loans SA 2,789 6,021 5,096
(ii) Other financial assets 3B 1,500 1,500 1,500
{d) Income tax assets (Net) 57,574 37,968 25 166
Total Non- current Assets 75,783 66,656 51,724
2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7A 140,361 146,849 100,479
(ii}Cash and cash equivalents 7B 33,487 107,180 42,607
(iti)Loans 5A 2,940 1,136 81
(iv) Other financial assets 5B 14,923 38637 22,976
(b) Other current assets 8 40,282 37,445 46,742
Total Current assets 231,993 331,547 212,885
Total Assets 307,776 398,203 264,609
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1)  Equity
() Equity share capital 9 291,753 231,753 231,753
(b) Instruments entirely equity in nature 9 300 300 -
(¢ ) Other equity 10 (113,464) (3,547) (77,327)
Total equity 178,589 228,506 154,426
2) Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(@) Provisions 12 3,687 5,089 3,514
Total Non-current Liabilities 3,687 5,089 3,514
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1)Trade Payables 11 112,046 152,089 43,517
{b) Provisions 12 1,184 126 92
(c) Other current liabilities 13 12,270 12,393 7.760
Total current liabilities 125,500 164,608 106,669
Total liahilities 129,187 169,697 110,183
Total Equity and liabilities 307,776 398,203 264,609
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

/ '
 leqh. PEUAL
Raji} Verma
Director

(DIN: 00017110)

Ploce: New Dell
¢ Moy 16,201



HT Mobile SolutionsLimited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2017 March 31,2016
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
I Income
a) Revenue from operations 15 415,598 549,626
b) Other Income 16 4,641 4,139
Total Income 420,239 553,765
II  Expenses
a) Employee benefits expense 17 141,842 142,052
.b) Finance costs 18 214 215
c) Depreciation and amortization expense 19 7,517 10,188
d) Other expenses 20 347.845 386,610
Total expenses 497,417 539,065
I Profit/ (loss) before tax (I-11)
(77,179) 14,700
IV Tax expense:
Current tax 14 =
Total tax expense -
vy Profit/ (Loss) after tax (I11-V) (77,179) 14,7
VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain/(loss) of the defined benefit plans 21 454 165
- Income tax effect - L
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 454 165
VL Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax ( VI+VII) (76,725) 14,865
VIIL Earnings/ (loss) per equity share
Basic (Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/-) 22 (2.74) 0.63
Diluted (Nominal value of shares Rs. 10/-) 22 {2.74) 0.56

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3010035#E3 (9a¢

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 96766

Place: Gurgaon
Date: May 16, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HT Mobile SolutiongLimited

aramjit Singh

Company Secretary

KN
b
Benoy Roychowdhury

Director
(DIN: 00816822)

-

Aff » UCL ad

Rafiv Verma
Director
(DIN: 00017110)

Place: New Delli
Dade . May 16,2013



HT Mobile Selutions Limited
(Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

= Notes  March 31,2017 . March 31, 2016}
e o . {Rs.in'000) __(Rs. in '000)]

(Cash from operating activities

EProfit before tax {77.179) 14,700
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization 19 7517 10,188
Employee stock option scheme expense 17 (3,192) (785)
Loss/ (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 20 101 {4y
Interest Income from investments and others 16 (4,257) {3.614)
Bad debts written off/ Impairment for doubtful debts and advances 20 10,119 8,174
Operating profit before working capital changes (66,891) 28,659
Working capital adfustments:

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivablas TA (3.630) (54,544)
(Increase)/Decrease in loans & advances 54, 5B 1,429 {1,981)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current and non-current assets 6,8 (2,837) 9,297
(Increase)/Decrease in other current and non-current financial assets 5B 22,876 (15,007)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 11 (40,044) 53272
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 13 {123) 4,633
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 12 111 1,773
Total cash from operations (89,110) 26,103
Income tax paid [ (19,607 (8,802)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) {1.08,71T) 17,301
Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment ;| 39 43
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (410) (15,431)
Interest received 5B 5.395 2.660
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) 5,024 (12,728)
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of preference shares including security premium 9 - 30,000
Proceeds from issue of equity shares g 30,000 -
Proceeds from share application money for equity shares 10 - 30,000
Net cash flows from/{used in) financing activities (C ) 30,000 60,000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (D= A+B+C) (73,693) 64,574
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E) 7B 1,07.180 42,607
Cash and cash equivalents at year end (D+E) 33,487 1,07,180




|Pariiculars

Notes March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016
(Rs. in "000) (Rs. in "000)
(Component of cash and cash equivalent as at end of the year
|Balances with banks
- on current aceounts 33487 3,180
- on deposit accounts - 104,000
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 33,487 107,180

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

|For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

—
Firm Registration No. 301003E/ E300005

LT

|per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership No. 96766

Place: Gurgaon
Date; May 16, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of HT Mobile SolutionsLimited |

aramjit Singh
Company Sgeretary

.lr. Fr -
.\ L i L;C-'M-{
Berloy Royclowdhury' Rajiv V‘e'jna

Director Director
(DIN: D08 16822) (DIN: 000171 10)

Place : Negy Delly
Dale : Mﬁ}pf&,lt)ﬁ'
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HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

1. Corporate information

HT Mobile Solutions Limited (“The Company™) is a public company domiciled in India and is
incorporated on February 19, 2009 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India
having investment through HT Digital Media Holdings Limited to carry out mobile marketing,
social media marketing, advertising, mobile CRM and loyalty campaigns, mobile music content
and ring tones and integrates with other media campaigns and strategies.

The registered office of the Company is located at Hindustan Times House, 18-20, Kasturba
Gandhi Marg, New Delhi -110088.

Information on related party relationship of the Company is provided in Note 28.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2017 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May 16, 2017.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind-AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as
amended).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under the Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014
‘Indian GAAP’. These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first the
Company has prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. Refer to Note 32 on information on how the
Company has adopted Ind-AS.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
financial statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind-AS Balance Sheet as at April 1,
2015 being the date of transition to Ind-AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

- Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value;
- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest
thousand as per the requirement of Schedule II1, unless otherwise stated.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the
Company’s functional currency.




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non- current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

e [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the display of advertisement on website and delivery of
content and their realization in cash and cash equivalent. The Company has identified 12 months as
its operating cycle.

b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for
practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at
the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised inn
profit or loss.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the
Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded
during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments such as, derivatives and certain investments at
fair value at each reporting/ balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company has
assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal or
agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements.

Service tax is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
of the services by the service provider on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded
from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised

Revenue from services
Revenue from rendering of services is based on the stage of completion determined with reference
to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Revenue from SMS pushes/voice calls

Revenue is recognised after the delivery of SMS pushes/voice calls and is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates, if any

Revenue from Content
Revenue is recognised basis of log records of operators and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates, if any.

Revenue from Social Media
Revenue from social media is recognised based on actual output delivered in a month to the client
as per the terms of the RO/email from client/agreement.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and
loss.

e) Taxes
Current income tax

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
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or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised is
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Sales/ value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
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f) Property, plant and equipment

The Company has applied for one time transition option of considering the carrying cost of
Property, Plant and Equipment on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2015 as the deemed cost under
Ind-AS.

Property, plant and equipment and Capital Work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs (if any) if capitalization criteria are met and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any
trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to day- repairs and maintenance expenditure
and cost of replacing arts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on a Straight Line Method over its economic useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Type of asset Useful lives estimated by
management (Years)

General plant and machinery 5

Laptops 3

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided over the useful life of assets as
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, Plant and Equipment which are
added/disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis with reference to the
month of addition/deletion.

Modification or extension to an existing asset, which is of capital nature and which becomes an
integral part thereof is depreciated prospectively over the remaining useful life of that asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise of software licences & Non-compete fees. Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred.

On transition to Ind-AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible assets.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis using the estimated life as
follows:

- Internal software development costs consist primarily of salaries of internal employees and
consulting fees for developing software platforms, if any, for sale to or use by customers in
mobile marketing and advertising campaigns. Capitalization of costs related to the
development of software products, as all of the products are to be used as an integral part
of a product or process to be sold or leased, are capitalized once technological feasibility
has been reached and all development for the components of the product have been
completed. The costs are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of
the related product,

- Non- compete fees — Non- compete fees paid at the time of acquisition of business are
amortized over the period of agreement of non-compete fees.

- Software licenses acquired from the holding company, which are estimated to have lower
residual lives than that envisaged above, are amortised over such estimated lower residual
lives.
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h) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement
of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
Company’s or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To
estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is__




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

J) Retirement and other employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and defined contribution plans:

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc. are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method.

The Company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Company has a
present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, they are measured at present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined
by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e  The date that the Company recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in

the Statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-servlce costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and -

e  Net interest expense or income
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Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date.

The Company treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and
loss and are not deferred. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the
reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the
settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non- current liability.

k) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not

recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. -

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost.

A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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e  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with INDAS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance .

b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 11 and Ind-AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual
revenue receivables' in these financial statements)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
e  Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of IND AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

e  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
Contractual terms. As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses' in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
gross carrying amount. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss. the Company
combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk
to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, payables or as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and bank overdrafts.
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
non-derivative host contract - with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some
or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to
a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-
financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
tlows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of INDAS 109, the
Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements
contained in INDAS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host
contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

1) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangements conveys a right
to use the asset or assets, even if that rights is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
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substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance lease are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Finance charge are recognised in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in according with the
Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred. A leases asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.
However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the
lease term.

Leasehold improvements represent expenses incurred towards civil works, interiors furnishings, etc.
on the leased premises at various locations.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight —line basis over the lease term.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

n) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non—occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the entity.

o) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share
Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing:
-the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
-by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic eammgs per share to
take into account:
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-the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

-the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. The Company has availed option under Ind-AS 101, to
apply intrinsic value method to the options already vested before the date of transition and applied
Ind-AS 102 Share-based payment to equity instruments that remain unvested as of transition date

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee
benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of diluted earnings per share. .
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgement are as below:
Assessment of lease contracts

Significant judgement is required to apply lease accounting rules under Appendix C to INDAS 17: determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease. In assessing the applicability to arrangements entered into by the Company, management has
exercised judgement to evaluate the right to use the underlying assets, substance of the transaction including legally
enforced arrangements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangement to conclude whether the arrangements
meet the criteria under Appendix C to INDAS 17.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments,

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and
timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of
existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes
to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as
experience of previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the
responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the
conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the Companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Share Based Payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments at the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for
estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 25.




Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markets transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value
indicators.
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Note 3 : Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or Yaluation

Deemed cost as at April 01,2015 ) 443
Additions ; 29

Disposals/ Adjustments 1 .

4345
4,800
120

(Rs. in '000)

AsatMarch3,2006
Additions | -

Disposals/ Adjustments .

9,025
410
316 |

AsatMarch3t,2007  4;2

Depreciation :
As at April 01, 2015 -

Disposals

-

3
e o i .W.w§ A ——
]
iy i

AsatMarch31,2006 4w
Charge for the year i 4

AsatMare3L2007 s 5,

AsatMarch3t,2000 a3

Asat March 31,2016 _ 30

P - S " -

‘Asat April 01,2015 a3

Improvement to Leasehold Premises
‘Plant and Machinery
‘Furniture and Fixtures 13

443
4,345
17

= & 176
5852 . 6301

Loome B s

o sa0 st 5,866

(I) 'Ind AS 101 Exemption : The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101, whercas the carrying value of

property, plant and equipment has been carried forwarded at the amount as determined under the Indian GAAP. Regarding the application
of deemned cost, the Company has disclosed the cost as at April 01, 2015 net of accumulated depreciation. However, information regarding
gross block of assets, accumulated depreciation has been disclosed by the Company separately as follows ;

Improvement to Leasehold Premises
Plant and Machinery
Fumniture and Fixtures

1,212
18,305
397

769
13,960

443
4,345
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Note 4 : Intangible Assets

‘Deemed cost as at April 01,2015 9.766 1,391 11,157
Additions 10,602 = 10,602
Disposals/ Adjustments - - s
‘AsatMarch 31,2016 N 20,368 1,391 21,759
Addidons - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments . . "
‘As atMarch 31,2017 20,368 1,391 21,759
— e _ |
AsatAprilot,2o5 - - -
Charge for the year T 5,071 1387 6,458
AsatMarch31,2006 | 5,071 1,387 6,458
‘Charge for the year | 4,688 - 4,688
‘AsatMarch 31,2017 918 1387 11,146
} H

Net Block I Y
AsatMarch31,2017 10,609 4 10613
AsatMarch31,2006 1827 415301
bk SR L R N | | . IL15T

(I) 'Ind AS 101 Exemption : The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101, whereas the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been carried forwarded at the amount as determined under the
Indian GAAP. Regarding the application of deemed cost, the Company has disclosed the cost as at April 01, 2015
net of accumulated depreciation. However, information regarding gross block of assets, accumulated depreciation
has been disclosed by the Company separately as follows :

Software Licenses 25,690 15,924 ,?66
‘Non Compete fees _ 6.043 4,652 1.391

(II) Capitalisation of expenditure

During the year ended March 31, 2016 the Company had capitalised Salary, wages and bonus (payroll cost)
amounting to Rs 9,139 thousands under intangible asset under development. Consequently expenses disclosed
under note 17 is net of aforesaid amount.




HT Mobile Solutions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 5A : Loans

Unsecured considered good at amortised cost

Security Depasit

ETetllLulu ) B . 5728 7,157 _sm

Cument il 2,940 1,136 &1
2,789 6,021 5,096

Other financial assets (at amortised cost) 2 i e e . "
{BalancewithBanks: 5 i R —— P i

- =Margin money (held as security)* J g e
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Unbilled revenue**

Tnlal Other Fhanenlmm
Cum:nt o

Non - Cum:nt
TnlaniunualAmu
Cunwm.
'Ncm - Current

** Represents receivable on account of services rendered but ot billed as per the terms of agreement with the customers.

Note 6 ;

Income tax assets (Net)

Income tax asseis (net) I - - 57,574 37968

1,10,780
36,069

'Unmed conddemimd
8 4]
|
flm;a_in_nenl of unsecured doubtful debts
{Total Trade Receivables

No trade receivable is due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person, For details of amount due from other Related Parties refer Note 28,
For terms and conditions refating to related party receivables, refer Note 28. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally credit period generally falls in range of 0 to 90 days.

and cash uiv

Balamcewihbanks: i —— ] i
- On current accounts . . - ; —

‘- Depesits with original maturity of |

. — 104,000 33000
oL L— A ——— i e g it H 1L,07,180 42,607
‘Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on mﬂmc@mennihmﬂmlwammwm
term deposit rates.

Nm!-o&eumm

Cashandcasheqp valcthou‘!B)
‘Loans (Note 3A)
‘Other ﬁnanua] lssm (Note 5B)

‘l‘ou] ﬂuamialassets carried atamumud cost
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30,160 30,160
i (1,44.275) (67.550) (82,449)
Share based payment reserve . B ) 652 3844 4,662

AtApril 1,201

| Add : OCCPS 3,000,000 shares issued at a Premium @ Rs. 9.9 per share [ 29,700
- AtMarch 31, 2016 30,160
* Change during the year i

. AtMarch 31,2017 30,160

* As the financial statement are presented in thousand, proposed dividend on Optionally Convertible Cumulative Frefarence Shares (OCCPS) amounting to Rs. 300 (previous year Mareh 31, 2016 Rs. 162)
and tax on the same for Rs 62 (previous year March 31, 2016 Rs. 33) have been rounded off.

Share based payment reserve

T : ; = — i = o

Changes dunng the penod e e e e : (818)
At 31 March 2016 g ) 3844
Changes dunng the penod e _. R ——— MEA—— (3,192
N e e o ————— MR = MEL 652

At1 April 2015

during the period -
AtMMarch20t6 eyt s S i
At31March 2017 =l e e T e e S T e e

{This Space has been intentionally Jeft biank)
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Note 11 : Trade Payables

>Trad.e Payables (refer note 34 forr details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 92,559
Trade Payables to related

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally sertled as per agreed credit terms of 30 to 90 Days.
- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 28

For expalanations on the company's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 29,

l’rmrmn- for mpluy!e beneﬁl:l
l"m“smn for laave Ben:ﬂts

ote 13 : Other current liabilities

+Advances from Customers ({ mcludmg defferred mrcnue}
C\mnmms and agents balances
- Statutory dues

Note 14 : Income Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

(Rs. in '000)

Reconciliation of tax exp and the ing profit multiplied by India's d tic tax rate for 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017:

Accounting profit before tax = i TR0

~ Accounting profit before income tax o S (71,179) 14,700
At India's stanstory income tax rate of 30.90 % (31 March 20 i :
Unrecognised deferred tax (net)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:

.Tmpnnry differences arisiugw
:Unahsnrbed breught forward losses
_Pﬂ:l\flslon for defined bencfit ubllgmon
Unabsarbed depreciation carned forward
Impairment of doubtful debts and advances S e
Difference in WDV of tangible and intangible fixed assets as pafboo]mofn:cnmandlax
“books

.th'mlzempomy differences . 7, 104_ . “5,0‘[8
Deferred tax linbilities (net} 20883 25,476
Deferred tax asscts have not been recognised in respect of brought forward losses, unabsarbed d iation and other deductible temporary differences, as they may not

be used to offset taxable profits, they have arisen as the Company has been loss making up to | pwwnusyear and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other
evidence of recoverability in the near future,

The company offsets tax assets and habilities f and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
asgets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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‘Sales of

terest income on

- Bank deposits B R |
i = AR S S A i T

§0ther non - operating mctm_ie_ i - |

R e L e e S o S
‘Unwinding of discount on security deposit ;

‘Miscellaneous income

Salaries, wages and bonus )
Contribution to provident and other funds | . 3,842 5,019
Employee Stock Option Schems (Refer Note 25) ) (3192 (785)

Gratuity expense (Refer Note 24)
Workmen and Staff welfare expenses

Note 18 : Finance costs

iation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (note 3)
- Amortization of intangible (note 4)

‘Power and fuel ..
‘Services for mobile content and
‘Remt
‘Rates and taxes
‘Insurance
Repairs and maintenance:
-Plant and machinery
- Building

- Others. i
EIvae[]ing and conveyance
‘Communication costs e
‘Legal and professional fees _
Payment to auditor (refer details below)
[Exchange differences (net)
Impmrment for doubtful debts and advances
'Loss on sale of fixed assets

‘Bad debts’ advances written off
Miscellaneous expenm. =

Payment to auditors

As auditor :

- Audit fee - 1,000 800
- Limited Review . 376
- Tax audit fee 204 50

- Reimbursement of expenses - 35
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Note 21 : Other Comprehensive Income
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below :

During the year ended March 31, 2017

. (Rs. in "000)
Particulars . : - Retained . Total
Remeasurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans 454 454
L - I S A I 454
During the year ended March 31, 2016
Particulars . . Retained  Total

S . R ST ' x5 o oeaeninens

Remeasurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans 165 165
Total - - i 165 165

Note 22 : Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity
shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

(Rs. in '000 except earnings per share)

R Asat ' Asat

T e March 31,2017 March 31, 2016
Profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (77.179) 14.700
Profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effect of dilution (77,179) 14,700
Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS* (No.) 28131511 2.31,75347
Effect of dilution :

Equity share to be issued under share options (No.)* A 6,047 35,661
Convertible preference shares (No.)* 30,00,000 30,00,000
Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution * (No.) 3,11,37,558 2,62,11.008
Earning/ (loss) per share

Basic EPS (Rs)) ) (2.74) 0.63
Diluted EPS (Rs.) (2.74) 0.56

* The Company has reported net loss for the year ended March 31, 2017, and accordingly, 6,047 number of equity shares to be issued under the
ESOP schemes of the Company and 30,00,000 number of convertible preference shares has not been considered for computation of diluted EPS for
the year ended March 31, 2017 being anti-dilutive in nature,

Note 23 : Segment information

The Company’s operations comprise of only one segment ie. “Rendering of digital Service”. The management also reviews and measures the
operating results taking the whole business as one segment and accordingly make decision about the resources allocation, In view of the same,
separate scgment information is not required to be given as per the requirement of Ind-AS 108 on “Operating Segments”

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The Company renders its services primarily within India

with insignificant export income and does not have any operations in economic environments with different risks and returns and hence, it has been
considered as to be operating in a single geographical segment.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank}
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Note 24 : Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. F.very emﬂuyeeudmhu completed five years or more of services pets a gratuity an separation at 15 days salary (last drwwm salary) for
each completed year of service. The liability & provided as per !

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recoghized in the Profit and Loss Account and the liability amount recognized in the Balance Sheet,

Defined Bm:ﬁtgmmrly?hn

Curren! Service Cost
Imum Ewpense or Cost
{Re-measurement {or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
clunge in financial assumptions
-~ experience vanance (i.e. Actual experience vs nsmmpuons}
Bcnz‘ﬁ:s Paid
Imer-gmup Adjustment
'Total

The major catcgories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

Tnvestment in Funds managed by insurer 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plens are shown below:

Discount Rate ) 150% 775%

SfluyGrowthBaee T S0 | 750%
| Upto3Dyears i it 3 es o 300% L. 300w
1t S Sy R

Aqmntiluivemsiﬁvitym&lysis-ﬁxﬁmiﬁcmmrpdnnasmﬂMmchiﬂl?is'nadmmbcbuc

‘Defined Benefit Obigation (Base)

Impact on defined benefit obligation (Rs. in '000)

Discount Rate (-/+ 1 18)
Salary Growth Rate (-/+ 1%) 741
Attrition Rate (-/+ 50%) L82)

nzmﬂwmdmwmwmhmadhsﬁmamﬂmdmmmhamemmmds&ndbueﬁtuﬂmsamutufmmuechnwnIteymmmm
ocourtmg at the end of the reporting period.

The following tepresents the maturity profils of the defined benefit plan in firture years:

ithin the next 12 months (next annudl reporting period) 3

Between 2 and 5 years 309 315
‘Between 6 and 10 years 538 563
‘Bevond 10 years ) 15,558 17,254

Average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation is 19 years (Previous year- 19 years)

Defined Contribution Plan

Cmﬂnbrn on to Pmudmtnd O1her fnnds
Charged to Statement of Profit and Lass 5.842 L

Leave Encashment (unfunded)

The Company recognises the leave encashment expenses in the Statement of Profit & Loss based on actuarial valuation. )
The expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Leave encashment lisbility at the beginning and at the end of the year
(Rs. in

Liability at the beginning of the year 1,352
Benefits paid during the year (103) -

Acquisition Adjustment during the year 68 11
Provided during the year (173) 314
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 15 ; Share-based payments

Tn eccordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment, the scheme detailed below is d and administered ion bemefits in respect of the scheme is assessed and accounted by the

4

pany . To have an ding of the scheme, relevant disch are given below,

i
133% on the date of grant and
133% 12 months from the date o
983475 4.74 jp‘nﬂt i 1} Equity
134% 24 months from the date of | !

Granted durng the year g, et s e e
Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the yvear
 Expired during the year
Outstanding at the end of the period
Excrcisable at the end of the period s
As no stock options have been granted during the current year and Previous Year, the disclosures regarding estimated fair vahue are not provided.

C. The details of exercise price for stock options cutstanding at the end of the year ended March 31, 2017 are:
A stock option gives an empleyee, the right to purchase equity shares of the Company at a fived price within a specific period of time. The details of excreiss price for stock options outstanding at
the end of the year are as under:

137500
810891

Options granted are exercisable for a maximum period of 10 years afler the scheduled vesting date as per the Scheme,

The Company has availed cxemption under Ind AS 10} in respect of Share-based payments that had been vesicd before the transition date. The Company has elected 10 avail this exemption and
accordingly, vested options have been measured at inrinsie value .

(This Space has heen intentionally left blanty
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Note 26 : Commitments and contingencies
(a) Leases

Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

i) The Company has taken office premises under operating lease agreement. These are cancellable lease and are renewable on expiry ofthe lease period subject to mutual

agreement.

ii} The company has paid Rs. 10,716 thousand (March 31, 2016: Rs. 12,666 thousand) during the year towards minimum lease payment.

Note 27 : Fair values

The management assesscd that cash and cash equivalents, wade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafis and other current financial assets approximate their camying

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Note 28: Related party transactions

i) List of Related Parties and Relationships:-

‘Name of related parties where control exists whether transactions have occurred or not. :

;Fcll.ﬁ;w Subsidiaries (with whom transactions have eccurred du'l:i'né.the year)

;

i

Key Managerial Personnel®

* Represented here as the key management personnel of parent of the reporting entity

Hindustan Media Ventures Limited

The Hindustan Times Limited #

HT Digital Media Holdings Limited
Earthstone Holding (Two) Limited ##
Firefly e-Ventures Limited

HT Digital Streams Limited

HT Learning Centers Limited

Topmovics Entertainment Limited

" Mrs. Shobhana Bhartia
‘Mr. Shamit Bhartia

Mr. Diinesh Mitial

# The Hindustan Times Limited (HTL) does not hold any direct investment in the Company. However, HTL’s subsidiary HT Media Limited holds shares in the Company.

#i# Earthstone Holding (Two) Limited is the holding Company of The Hindustan Times Limited.

it} Transactions with related parties
Refer Note 28A

iii) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties arc made on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. This
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

iv) Transaction with Key Management Personnel or their relatives
No transactions have occurred during the year.

(This Space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Mote 29: Financial risk manapement objectives and policies

The companies principal financial iabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities s to i ths i ions. Th principal financial assets melude
loans, trade and other reccivables, and cach and cash equivalents that desive directly from its operations. The company alse enters into derivative Iranualm
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 3 fimancial mstrament will flictnatz because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of nsk: interost rate risk currency rigk
s other price risk, such a5 equity price isk and commodity Fisk,

This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held st 31 March 2017 and 31 March 206
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair vahie or fature cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate becsuse of changes in foreign exch rates. The i to the rizk of changes in foreign exchange
wates relates primasily to the companies operating sctivities (when revanus or expense is dmominated in 2 fordgn curremsy ).

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following t2bles demenstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and GBP exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the companies profit before tax is duc 1o
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and lisbilities ncludng non-dasignated foreige eurrency derivatives and embedded denvatives. The impset on the companies pre-tax equity is due 1o changres m the fair
value of forward enchange coniracts designated as cash flow hodges and net investment hedges. The Group's exposure to forcign currency changes for all other currencies is not material,

(Rs. in '000)

Change in USD rate

Trade receivables Hi(=)1% i) 1% 180
Unbilled revenue ! . HE L% Hi) 1% ol o
Advance from customers o Y 1% i) 1% W s
e 0 R SR T A S R S i) 1% e

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will rot meet its obligations under a [inancial instrument or customer contract, leading 1o & financial koss. The company is exposed 1o credit risk from its opeTotng activitics
{primanily trade recevables) and from its financing activitics, meluding deposits with banks and financial mstitutions and foreign cxchange transactions.

Trade receivables

An i analvsis is performed o each reporting date on an isdividual basis for major elients. The max P 1o eredit sk at the reporting date is the camyving value of each class of financial assets
disclosad in Note 74 The Company does not hold callateral as secarty.

The comp i th on of risk with respect to rade ivables as low, o8 its custs are located in several jurisdictions and indusiries and operste m [argely independient markets.

Liquidity risk

The company monitors its nisk of a shortage of funds using a liquidin: planning tool.

‘The company's ohjective &5 to maintain a balance betwean continusty of funding and Aexibility throagh the use of baak fraifts, bark loans, prefe h Ap i | 949.8% of the Company's debt will

msture i less than one year ot 31 Merch 2017 (31 March 2016: 99.8%, 1 Aprl 2013: 100%4) based on the cormying value of borrewings nﬂum n dmfxmnnal st.ummls

“The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maluring within 12
months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

“The table below summartres the maturity profile of the Group's financial Labilities based on contractual undiscounted paymenis.

PR
Year ended
31-Mar-17 e
Conventible preference shares
Trade and other pay ables

SRS S E e s e e e
= h R Ty

Year ended

31-Mar-16 e
Conventible preference shares L
Trade and other payables

Year ended

As at 1 April 2015
Convertible preference shares
Trade and other pavables

(Thix Space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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Note 30: Capital management

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. The
primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital and net debt. The company
includes within net deb, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

(Rs. in '000)

. March31,2016  April1.2015

1 12 046 | 1,52,089 | 98,817

(33,487) (1,07,180) (42,607)

78,558 44,909 56,211
f_Equity & Other Equity 1,78,589 2,28,506 1,54,426 |
Total cap:tal o 1,78,589 2,28,506 1,54,426
Caputal and net debt 2,57,147 2,73,415 2,10,637
;_Gt;;rlrpg [a_tlu 31% 16% 27%

No changes were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016.

Note 31: Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)
Ministry Of Corporate Affairs issued an amendment to Schedule IIT of the Companies Act, 2013, regarding general instructions for preparation

The aforesaid disclosure is as follows:

(Rs. in "000)
T

ol i

! e e e
SR T R :@i' RS &3 ﬁwuyﬁ s

Closing cash in hand - November 8. 2016 o .
+ Perm:rted receipts - . =
- Perrmtt payments

I

1 §
- Amount deposited into hanks i = : 3 =]

:

5

Closmg cash in hand - Dccember 30, 2016

Explanahon Forthe purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes'(SBN) shall have the same meaning prowc[cd in the notification of
the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.0. 3407(E), dated the 8 November, 2016.

(This Space has been intentionally left blank)
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1

m

b}

a)

b)

Note 32: First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first the company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the
year ended March 31, 2016, the company prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the company's (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordmgly, the company has prepared financial which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31,2017, together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the
company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 1, 2015, the company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the
company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March
31, 2016.

Exempfions applied
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind- AS.

Ind AS eptional exemptions

Deemed Cost

- The company has clocted to regard the canrying value of PPE and intangible assets as per Indian GAAP as its deemed cost at the date of the transition to [nd AS. This
exemption is also used for intangible assets covered by Ind-AS 38,

Leases
The company has been applied the transitional provision in Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an arrangement conlains a Lease and has assessed all
arrangements based upon the conditions in place as at the date of transition .

Fair value measurement of financial assets and liabilities
Under IGAAP the financial assets and liabilities were being carried at the transaction value.

First-time adopters may apply Ind AS 109 to day one gain or loss provisions prospectively to transactions occumring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.
Therefore, uniess a first-time adopter elects to apply Ind AS 109 retrospectively to day one gain or loss transaction, transactions that oceurred prior to the date of
transition to Ind AS do not need to be retrospectively restated. The Company has measured its financial assets and labilities at amortised cost or fair value,

Share Based Payment Transactions

The Company has allowed to apply Ind-AS 102 Share-based payment to equity instruments that remain unvested as of transition date. The Company has elected to avail
this exemption and apply the requirements of Tnd-AS 102 to all employee stock options remaining unvested as of the transition date. Accordingly, these options have been
measured at fair value as against intrinsic value previously under Indian GAAP

The excess of stock compensation expense measured using fair value over the cost recognized under IGAAP using intrinsic value has been adjusted in 'Share Option
Outstanding Account’, with the corresponding impact taken to the retained carnings as on the transition date.

Ind A exemptions
Estimates
The company's esti in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS are consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with Indian

GAAP (afler adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies) apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did not require estimation |

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model
The estimates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with Tnd AS reflect conditions as at the transition date and as of March 31, 2016

Ind AS 101 treats the information received after the date of transition to Ind AS as non-adjusting events. The entity shall not reflect that new information in its opening
Ind AS Balance Sheet (unless the estimates need adjustment for any differences in accounting policies or there is objective evidence that the estimates were in error).

The presentation requirements under Indian GAAP differs from Ind-AS, and hence, Indian GAAP information has been regrouped for ease of reconciliation with Ind-AS.
The Regrouped Indian GAAP information is derived from the Financial Statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP.

(This Space has been imentionally left blarnk)
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i (Bs. in '000)
TadaAsT

Regrooped Tndian  Tnd AS Adjustments
e e e

n R S Lo i
Non-current assets
(a) Propenty, plant and equipment 4805 - 4,805
(b} Intangible assets 11,157 - 11,157
(<) Financial assets -
(i)Loans 3 5113 (an 5.006
(i) Onher financial assets. 1,500 = 1,500
{d) Income tax assets (Met) 25,166 = 29,166
Total Non- current Assets 51,741 (17T) 51,724
Current assets N
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 1,00479 - 100479
(ii}Cash and cash equivalents 42,607 - 42607
(iii)Loans 81 - 81
(iv) Other financial assets 22,976 - 22976
(b} Other cument assets 3 46,726 16 46,742
Total Current assels 2.12.869 16 2,12, 885
Total Assets 264,610 (1) 2,64,609
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 231,753 - 231,733
(b) Instraments entirely equity in nature - - "
(e } Other ﬂiy 36 {76,838) (489) (77,327)
Total equity 1,54,915 {489) 1,54,426
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
(a) Provisions 3514 - 3,514
Total Non-current Liabilities 3,514 - 3514
Current Liabilities -
{a) Financial ligbilities -
(i) Trade Payables 98,317 - 98817
(b) Provisions 92 - 92
(c) Other current liabilities [ TETE 488 1760
Total eurrent liabilities 106,181 488 1,06,669
Tatal liabilities 1,090,695 488 1,10,183
Total Euin and liabilitics 2,64,610 (1) 2,64,609
Reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2016 - (Rs. in "000)
Eai prculi iy e - S REAS T
i . . ; L B
ASSETS
Non-current assets .
() Property, plant and equipment 5,866 - 5,866
{b) Intangible assets 15,301 = 15,301
{c ) Financial assets -
(i)Loans 3 5,729 292 6,021
(ii) Other financial assets 1,500 2 1,500
jd::lncome tax assets (Net) 37,968 - 37,968
Total Non- current Assets 66,364 292 66,656
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 1,496,849 - 1,46,849
(ii}Cash and cash equivalents 1,07,180 - 1,07,180
(i) Loans 1,136 - 1,136
{iv) Dther financial assets 38,937 - 38,937
() Other current assets 3 37,760 (315} 37445
Total Current assets 3.31,862 i315) 331,547
Total Assets 3,98,226 {23) 3,98,203
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
() Equity share capital 2,31,753 - 2,31,753
(b) Instruments entirely equity in naturs 300 - 300
(c ) Other equity 3.6 (3,387 (160) (3,547
Total equity 2,28,666 (160) 1,28,506
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions 5,089 = 3089
Total Non-current Liabilities 5,089 = 5,089
Current labilities -
() Financial liabilities -
(i)Trade Payables 1,52.089 - 1,52,089
{b) Prowvisions 126 - 126
{c) Other current habilities [ 12,256 137 12,393
Total current labilities 164,471 137 1,64.608
Total liabilities 1,569,560 137 1,689,697

Total Equity and liabilities 3,98,226 (23) 3,958,203
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Note 32B: Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for th
i i s B O T e :

I Income
a) Revenue from operations
b) Other Income

Total Income

I Expenses
a) Employee benefits expense
b) Finance costs
¢) Depreciation and amortization expense
d) Other expenses
Total expenses

IIl Profit/ (loss) before tax (I-IT)
Profit Before tax

IV Tax expense:
Current tax
Total tax expense

V  Profit/ (Loss) after tax (11I-V)

VI OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not to be reclassified 1o profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain/(loss) of the defined benefit plans
- Income tax effect

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax { VI+VII)

25

e year ended March 31, 2016
e . ey

-

. IndAs

549275 350 549,626
3,820 310 4,139
553,104 661 5,53,764
142,672 (620) 142,052
215 " 215
10,188 . 10,188
386278 332 386,610
5.39.353 (288) 539,065
13,751 949 14,700
13,751 949 14,700
13,751 949 14,700
13,751 949 14,700
165 165

- 165 165
13,751 1,114 14,865
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Footnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 and profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016

L. Proposed Dividend and tax thereon

Under Indian GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance sheet date but before the approval of the financial statements were
considered as adjusting events, Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend was recognized as a liability. Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognized
when the same is approved by the shareholders in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend of INR 162 as at March 31, 2016
(April 1, 2015 — INR NIL) included under provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustment 1o retained eamings. Consequently, the total equity
increased Ii_v an equivalent amount.

2. Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognized costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian
GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss. Under Ind AS, remeasurements [comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCL Thus the employee benefit cost is reduced by INR 165 thousand with no tax impact and remeasurement gaing' losses on
defined benefit plans has been recognized in the OCI net of tax.

3. Fair value of security deposit

Under Indian GAAP all the security deposits given to the lessor are recorded at transaction value. ind AS 109 requires financial assets which are classified as
amortized cost to be initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method (EIR).

4. Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OC]) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit and loss to
profit and loss as per Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

5. Share-based payments

Under Indian GAAP, the company recognized only the intrinsic value of the long term incentive plan as an expense, Ind AS requires the fair value of the
share options to be determined using an appropriate pricing model recognized over the vesting period. An additional expense of INR 4255 thousand has been
recognized in profit & loss for the year ended 31st March 2015,

6. Extended credit given

As per Ind AS if there is a significant lag between when the good or services are provided and the consideration is received the time value of money should
also be taken into account. That is, deferred payments might indicate that there is both a sale and a financing transaction. If there is a financing element it is
necessary to discount the consideration to present value in order to arrive at fair value. On the date of transition, impact of INR (-) 488 thousand in opening
retained eamings as at April 1, 2015 and INR (+)350 thousand on retained earnings as at March 31, 2016.

Note 33

During the year, the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Firefly e-Ventures Limited (Firefly) (fellow subsidary), HT Digital Media Holdings Limited
(Holding company) and the company (HT Mobile Solutions Limited) approved a Composite Scheme of Capital Reduction and Arrangement (the Scheme)
under Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act 1956, along with Section 52 of the Companies Act 2013 and Sections 391-394 of Companies Act, 1956,
among Firefly, HT Digital and The Company and their respective shareholders and creditors, subject to requisite approval(s) and sanction by the Hom’ble
Delhi High Court. The Scheme, inter-alia, provides for demerger of HT Campus Undertaking (Demerged Undertaking) of Firefly and transfer and vesting
thereof into the HT Mobile w.e.f. June 30, 2016 (the Appointed Date). Pending sanction of the Scheme by Hon’ble Delhi High Court, the impact of Scheme
is not considered in these Financial Statements.

Note 34 Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Based upon the information available with the Company, the balance due to suppliers registered under “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006” as on March 31, 2017 is Rs. Nil { As at March 31, 2016: Rs. Nil), Further, no interest during the year has been paid or is payable
under the terms of the Act,

Note 35

The financial statement for the previous year ended March 31, 2016 and year ended March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with accounting standard
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP) were audited
by the another firm of Chartered Accountants.




Note 36; Standards issued but not yet effective

MCA has issued the Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 which is effective from April 1, 2017, The new standard issued,
but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Financial Statements is described below. The Group intends to adopt this standard when it becomes
effective.

Amendment to Ind AS 7: Statement of Cash flows

The amendment to Ind AS 7 required the entities to provide disclosures that enable uscrs of financial statements (o evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non- cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the
opening and closing balances in the balances sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirements, The effect on the
financial statements is being evaluated by the Companv.

Amendment to Ind AS 102 :

The amendment to Ind AS 102 provides specific guidance to measurement of cash settled awards, modification of cash settled awards and awards that
include a net settlement feature in respect of withholding taxes.

It clarifies that the fair value of cash settled awards is determined on a basis consistent with that used for equity setiled awards. Market based performance
conditions and non- vesting conditions are reflected in the *fair values’, but non- market performance conditions and services vesting

conditions are reflected in the estimate of the number of awards expected to vest. Also, the amendment clarifies that if the terms and conditions of a cash
settled share based payment transaction are modified with the result that it becomes an equity settled share based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as such from the date of the modification. Further, the amendment requires the award that include a net settlement feature in respect of
withholding taxes to be treated as cquity scttled in its entirety. The cash payment to the tax authority is treated as if it was part of an equity seftlement. The
effect on the financial statements is being evaluated by the Company.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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